
 

 

 

Americans with Disabilities Act – Reasonable Accommodations Provided Upon Request (360-851-4500) 

 

 

   

 

 CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND 
            September 5, 2019 Regular Business Meeting Agenda 

 25510 Lawson St., Black Diamond, Washington 
 

 

7:00 P.M. – CALL TO ORDER, FLAG SALUTE, ROLL CALL 

AGENDA REVIEW AND APPROVAL: 

APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS, PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS:  

Proclamation – National Recovery Month 

CONSENT AGENDA: 

1) Claim Checks –September 5, 2019 Check No. 47851 through 47908 (voids 47779, 47852) in the amount of  
$ 149,058.19 

2) Minutes – Work Session of August 8, 2019, and Council Meeting of August 15, 2019 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Persons wishing to address the City Council regarding items of new business are encouraged to do so at this time.  

When recognized by the Mayor, please come to the podium and clearly state your name.  Please limit your comments to 3 minutes.  If you desire a 
formal agenda placement, please contact the City Clerk at 360-851-4500.  Thank you for attending. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None 
 

NEW BUSINESS:  

3) AB19-043 – Resolution No. 19-1314 Authorizing Agreements with CivicPlus for Website and Civic 
  Clerk           Ms. Martinez/ 
             Mr. Reed 
 

4) AB19-044 – Resolution No. 19-1315 Authorizing Contract with South Correctional Facility  Chief Kiblinger 

5) AB19-045 – Resolution No. 19-1316 Authorizing ILA with the Houston-Galveston Area Council 
for Procurement of a New Fire Apparatus      Mr. Linehan 
 

6) AB19-046 – Ordinance No. 19-1126 Clarifying the Language of Section 2.14.030    Mayor Benson 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS:   

MAYOR’S REPORT: 

COUNCIL REPORTS: 

• Councilmember Edelman 

• Councilmember Stout 

• Councilmember Wisnoski  

• Councilmember Deady 



 

 

 

Americans with Disabilities Act – Reasonable Accommodations Provided Upon Request (360-851-4500) 

• Councilmember Oglesbee 

 

ATTORNEY REPORT:  

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

EXECUTIVE SESSION:   

ADJOURNMENT:   

CLOSED SESSION:  Following adjournment of the regular City Council meeting will be a closed session to discuss with 
the City’s Labor Attorney collective bargaining pursuant to RCW 42.30.140(4) 



Office of the Mayor 
Black Diamond, Washington 

 

 

 

PROCLAMATION 
 
WHEREAS, behavioral health is an essential part of one’s overall health and wellness; and  
 
WHEREAS, prevention of mental and substance use disorders works, treatment is effective, and people 
recover in our area and around the nation; and  
 
WHEREAS, preventing and overcoming mental and substance use disorders is essential to achieving healthy 
lifestyles, both physically and emotionally; and  
 
WHEREAS, an estimated 400,000 people in King County are affected by these conditions; and  
 
WHEREAS, we must encourage relatives and friends of people with mental and/or substance use disorders to 
implement preventive measures, recognize the signs of a problem, and guide those in need to appropriate 
treatment and recovery support services; and  
 
WHEREAS, we recognize four dimensions of recovery from mental health and substance use disorders: health, 
home, purpose, and community; and 
 
WHEREAS, to help more people achieve and sustain long-term recovery, the U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services (HHS), the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), the White 
House Office of National Drug Control Policy (ONDCP), the King County Behavioral and Recovery Division 
,invite all residents of Black Diamond to participate in National Recovery Month (Recovery Month); and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Carol Benson, Mayor of the City of Black Diamond, on behalf of the Black Diamond City 
Council, call upon Black Diamond residents to observe the month of September with appropriate programs, 
activities, and ceremonies supporting this year’s Recovery Month theme, “Join the Voices for Recovery :  
Together We Are Stronger”, and do hereby proclaim in the City of Black Diamond, the month of September 
2019 as a month to recognize 

 
NATIONAL RECOVERY MONTH 

 
 
 
               

         Carol Benson, Mayor 































































 

Black Diamond City Council Work Session Minutes – August 8, 2019 
 Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER, FLAG SALUTE:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
 
Mayor Benson called the regular work session meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and led us all in 
the Flag Salute. 
 

ROLL CALL: 
 
PRESENT:  Councilmembers, Deady, Oglesbee, Edelman, Stout, and Wisnoski.   
 
Staff present:  Andrew Williamson, MDRT/Ec Dev Director, and Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk. 
 
There were introductions of the Mountain View Fire & Rescue Commissioners.  
 

WORK SESSION: 
 
1) Discussion Regarding Fire Department Services 

 
Fire Commissioner Ferrell read a prepared statement regarding fire services provided to Black 
Diamond.  The letter touched on the amount the city is paying is not keeping pace with the cost 
of providing their services to the growing City.  He gave background information fire services for 
Black Diamond and noted the City entering into an ILA in 2006 with them.  He shared that 
during the past several years the City has benefited financially by the District being able to get 
the Protection Classification for Black Diamond reduced from a 6 to a 4, which in turn reduces 
the insurance premiums for every homeowner and business and also by the increasing cost of 
maintaining the level of coverage has not been fully covered by the terms of the currently ILA.  
Also discussed was the City’s budget and levy rate.  He noted the concerns of the District relate 
to the following primary issues:  1) Inequities and the concerns with that, 2) Expanding services 
for the City’s growth, and 3) Six years of study and recommendations with no resolution.  In 
closing, Commissioner Ferrell stated that it is crucial these issues be addressed.  He noted the 
draft ILA 3rd Addendum was provided for discussion in March of 2019, including an approach to 
align the cost of services over the next four years and should a fair and equitable plan not be 
agreed to fund fire and emergency services in the City, elected officials for the District will be 
forced to take action related to the continuance of the current ILA.  The District is looking 
forward to making important progress with the Council. 
 
Mayor Benson discussed the financial significance of the contract the District is proposing.  She 
discussed the suggested rates and how they would affect the city.  She noted the need to take 

 BLACK DIAMOND CITY COUNCIL  
WORK SESSION MINUTES 

August 8, 2019 
Council Chamber, 25510 Lawson Street, Black Diamond, Washington 



 

Black Diamond City Council Work Session Minutes – August 8, 2019 
 Page 2 of 2 

out of the agreement the reference to the pre-annexation agreement as this is not the place for 
that.  She discussed a levy lid lift and how that would work.  She also discussed the calls for 
service and noted they have not gone up since she’s been involved in City government. 
 
Commissioner Ferrell discussed the District not wanting to push this issue earlier due to the fact 
the City Council was not functioning well and wanting to give time to get the Council to be 
cohesive. 
 
There continued to be back and forth discussion between the Councilmembers and 
Commissioners with the topics/highlights of discussion being: 
 

• Levy Lid Lift being discussed in 2015, however the timing was not good 

• Monies in the City Budget for the purchase of a new fire truck 

• Councilmember Wisnoski discussed how the City is underpaying for fire services and 
noted the City needs to find the money 

• The need to leave this meeting with the same direction for Council and the 
Commissioners 

• Discussion on how the fire budget has progressed over the last fourteen years 

• When the City needs to do a lid lift and what the number should be 

• Citizens deserve quality service and there is cost for that 

• Commissioner Ferrell explaining the need to know that the Council sees there needs to 
be a fair and equitable increase and would like the Council to promise that they will be 
paying there fair and equitable share 

• Discussion on benefit service charge and how it works 

• Mayor giving staff direction to research what the city needs for a levy lid lift and having 
a discussion at the next meeting showing good faith and confidence that the working on 
this 

 
In closing it was suggested to get together in 60 days to discuss progress on the levy lid lift and 
the ordering of the new fire truck.  There was consensus this would happen at the work session 
on October 10, 2019. 
 

ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Councilmember Deady moved to adjourn the meeting; second by Councilmember Edelman.  
Motion passed with all voting in favor (5-0). 
 
The meeting ended at 7:30 p.m. 
          
   ATTEST: 
 
 
           
Carol Benson, Mayor    Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk 



 

Black Diamond City Council Meeting Minutes – August 15, 2019 
 Page 1 of 5 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER, FLAG SALUTE: 
 
Mayor Benson called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and led us all in the Flag 
Salute. 
 

ROLL CALL: 

PRESENT:  Councilmembers Deady, Oglesbee, Edelman, Stout, and Wisnoski. 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
Staff present:  Scott Hanis, Capital Projects/Program Manager; David Linehan, City 
Attorney, and Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk/HR. 
 

AGENDA REVIEW AND APPROVAL: 
Councilmember Oglesbee moved to accept the agenda; second Councilmember Edelman.  
Motion passed with all voting in favor (5-0). 
 

APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS, PROCLAMATIONS AND 
PRESENTATIONS:  
 
Proclamation – Children’s Therapy Center Day – August 29, 2019 

Mayor Benson read a proclamation regarding August 29, 2019 being Children’s Therapy 
Center Day. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA: 

Councilmember Edelman moved to adopt the Consent Agenda; second Councilmember 
Deady.  Motion passed with all voting in favor (5-0).  The Consent Agenda was approved as 
follows: 
 
1) Claim Checks –August 15, 2019 Check No. 47787 through 47850 (voided checks 47602, 

47788-47803) and EFTs in the amount of $ 455,836.24 
 

2) Payroll – July 30, 2019 – Check No. 19839 through 19843 and 19845 through 19855 
and ACHs in the amount of $371,115.99. 

 
3) Minutes –Council Meeting of August 1, 2019 

 

 BLACK DIAMOND CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
Council Meeting of August 15, 2019 

Council Chamber, 25510 Lawson Street, Black Diamond, Washington 



 

Black Diamond City Council Meeting Minutes – August 15, 2019 
 Page 2 of 5 

4) AB19-039 – Resolution No. 19-1310 Amending the Adopted Planning Calendar for the 
2020 Budget Process  

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  
Pat Nelson, Black Diamond spoke to Council. 

Robbin Taylor, Black Diamond spoke to Council. 

Kristen Bryant, Bellevue spoke to Council. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  None 

 

NEW BUSINESS:   

5) AB19-040 – Resolution No. 19-1311 Awarding Bid and Contract to Triangle Pumps & 
Equipment, Inc.   

 

Capital Projects/Program Manager Hanis reported to Council on this agenda item. 
 
There was Council discussion with Councilmembers noting being in support of this item. 
 

Councilmember Edelman moved to adopt Resolution No. 19-1312 authorizing the Mayor 
to execute an agreement with Triangle Pump & Equipment, Inc. to provide the pumps for 
the WSFFA Springs Rehabilitation; second Councilmember Stout.  Motion passed with all 
voting in favor (5-0). 
 
6) AB19-041 – Resolution No. 19-1312 Authorizing the Purchase of a New Public Works 

Truck  
 
Capital Projects/Program Manager Hanis briefed Council on this item. 
 

There was Council discussion on this agenda item. 

Councilmember Deady moved to adopt Resolution No. 19-1312 authorizing the purchase 
of a new 2019 Doge Tam 1500 Classic Tradesman 4X4 from Northsound Dwayne Lane; 
second Councilmember Oglesbee.  Motion passed with all voting in favor (5-0). 
 
7) AB19-042 – Resolution No. 19-1313 Awarding Bid and Contract to Process Solutions, 

Inc.  
 
Capital Projects/Program Manager Hanis discussed this item. 
 
There was back and forth discussion between Councilmembers and Mr. Hanis. 
 
Councilmember Edelman moved to adopt Resolution No. 19-1313 authorizing the Mayor 
to execute an agreement with Process Solutions, Inc. to provide the variable frequency 



 

Black Diamond City Council Meeting Minutes – August 15, 2019 
 Page 3 of 5 

drive control panel for upcoming WSFFA pump station reconstruction project; second 
Councilmember Oglesbee.   
 
Mr. Hanis clarified what the WSFFA is. 
 
Vote:  Motion passed with all voting in favor (5-0). 
 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS:   

Fire –  
Commissioner Ferrell announced that on September 7 the department will be holding a 
pancake breakfast and at the event they will be providing bike helmets to kids.  He invited 
everyone to attend.  
 
Chief Smith reported on the department using the state bid process to purchase many 
vehicles and noted it’s the way to go.  He recapped calsl from August 1 – 14 and noted 
there being a total of 40 incidents for a 2.68 call per day.  He shared that 27% of their calls 
are from elderly patients 70 and over.  He discussed the per capita call volume per 1,000 
population for a few different areas.  He also invited citizens to visit them at the pancake 
breakfast and shared they are getting ready for the City’s Labor Day event. 
 

MAYOR’S REPORT:  

Mayor Benson reported attending the work session with Mountain View Fire & Rescue 
regarding fire services for the City and noted the next meeting will be in 60 days to discuss 
levy lid lift and budget.  She stated the City Attorney will be drafting a resolution and 
agreement for the purchase of the new fire truck.  She shared that Sound Publishing is in 
the middle of changes and one of them is the folding of Maple Valley portion of the Maple 
Valley/Covington Reporter, with Covington now being a part of the Kent Reporter.  After 
August 30, residents in the northern part of Black Diamond will no longer receive a copy of 
the Maple Valley/Covington Reporter, and instead will receive a copy of the Courier 
Herald. 
 

COUNCIL REPORTS: 

Councilmember Oglesbee reported being absent from the last regular Council meeting, 
however she was able to listen to the audio.  She commented on the legislation passed 
creating two new Council positions.  She shared that she personally sees no problem with 
the move to a seven-member Council now as the City is growing and the Council needs to 
grow as well.  She discussed state law being that the City Council does appoint these two 
new positions and then they run in the next general election in 2021.  She noted she would 
like to see the process be the same as it has been in the past and move the interviews to a 
regular Council meeting.  She discussed the levy lid lift being a lot of work and touched on 
the exemptions that apply.  She reported attending the work session, the community-wide 
garage sale and reminded citizens that the Labor Days event is coming up soon. 
 
Councilmember Edelman reported meeting with Barb Kincaid on a code revision.  She 
noted attending the Public Works Committee meeting where they discussed the items on 



 

Black Diamond City Council Meeting Minutes – August 15, 2019 
 Page 4 of 5 

tonight’s agenda, SEAL TC meeting, National Night Out event at Mayor Benson’s house, 
and the work session.  She discussed the Council Rules changes she brought up at the last 
meeting and noted she would like to move forward with the changes so Council can vote 
on them soon.  She commented being willing to make the changes and send to the 
Attorney for review.  She reviewed the changes she is proposing and noted bringing them 
back to the next meeting in September.  There was consensus for Councilmember Edelman 
to draft language for Council consideration. 
 
Councilmember Stout reported on the attendance at the work session where the fire 
contract was discussed.  She noted there being a lot to work out and stated her position is 
we need to do the best we can with what we have to provide services to Black Diamond.  
She commented on being confused about the chart regarding the proposed increases and 
it being drastic and then at the meeting being told that is not what they will be asking.  She 
shared the fire contract will again be discussed at the October 10 work session.  She 
mentioned that on August 22 at 11:00 a.m. there will a ribbon cutting ceremony for the 
grand opening of the Roberts Drive Rock Creek Bridge Pedestrian Walkway.  She thanked 
and congratulated Councilmember Deady for all her hard work on the Black Diamond 
Community Center garage sale where $3,200 was raised for the Community Center. 
 
Councilmember Wisnoski reported attending the work study last week, the Community 
Yard Sale, and advised there was no planning committee meeting. He emphasized to the 
staff the importance of bringing the correct budget numbers and any pertinent information 
to the Oct. 4th meeting. He mentioned that the Councilmembers don’t always agree with 
each other, and with the Mayor, on all matters that come before them and wanted to 
reassure the citizens that they always try to work through all disagreements in a 
reasonable fashion to come to a decision that is best for the citizens of Black Diamond. He 
reiterated that they are not always “YES” people; always agreeing with the Mayor’s 
decisions. He was a bit confused to where they are with the fire engine/truck purchasing 
process and the Mayor asked Attorney Linehan to explain the process. Attorney Linehan 
explained that the 1st step with purchasing the engine/truck would be to bring a resolution 
to Council at the next meeting which he will draft up. The fire dept. has already been doing 
the research to look for the best deal. Then they would go through a large government 
coop in Texas which is a state-run entity and they have huge purchasing power for the best 
pricing. The 2nd step would deal more of logistics; who places the ad, who review bids, who 
opens bids, who decides on the apparatus, who places the order, etc. Finally, Mt. View 
would bring a recommendation to Council for approval and then places the order. Once 
the order is placed, it would take approximately a year for it to be delivered. He noted that 
he would like to see the verbiage regarding the contractual length for the City Attorney, be 
revised from 5 yrs. to 2 yrs. to make it less ambiguous and open for interpretation. 
Discussion followed from the Councilmembers and no one had any issues with it to be 
changed. He reported the Phillapeno Heritage Day is a free cultural event and will take 
place 8/24 from 11am to 4pm at Neely Mansion.  
 
Councilmember Deady reported on the Community wide Yard Sale which happened the 2nd 
weekend of August and was a huge success raising $3,207 for the Community Center.  They 
had 11 residents participate in addition to the community sale which was very well 



 

Black Diamond City Council Meeting Minutes – August 15, 2019 
 Page 5 of 5 

attended all 3 days. She wanted to thank Judy Watson, Lynn Mason, and Barbara Jensen 
for all their help all 3 days. She noted they were there from 8am till 11pm each of the 3 
days.  She also mentioned there were several comments to her from citizens regarding the 
council increasing from 5 members to 7 members this year. She also touched on the 
importance of entertaining the idea of a Levy Lid Lift probably next year when the new 
members are involved. She stated briefly that she attended National Night Out. She 
reminded everyone that the Public Safety Committee Meeting is on September 5 from 
3pm to 4pm.  
 

ATTORNEY REPORT:  City Attorney Linehan announced he would like to add a ten-

minute executive session to discuss litigation pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i). 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  

Jennifer Lathum, Black Diamond spoke to Council. 

Pat Nelson, Black Diamond spoke to Council. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION:  

At 8:16 p.m. Mayor Benson recessed the meeting into an executive session to discuss with 
legal counsel litigation pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i).  The executive session was 
anticipated to last for ten minutes with no action to follow.  The Council Chambers was 
emptied so Council could go into executive session. 
 
Mayor Benson called the meeting back to order at 8:26 p.m. 
 

ADJOURNMENT: 
Councilmember Edelman moved to adjourn the meeting; second Councilmember Oglesbee.  Motion 
passed with all voting in favor (5-0). 
 
The meeting ended at 8:26 p.m. 
    ATTEST: 
 
          
Carol Benson, Mayor    Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk 



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Black Diamond 
Post Office Box 599 

Black Diamond, WA 98010 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT: 
 
Resolution authorizing the Mayor to 
execute Master Service Agreements with 
CivicPlus for Website and CivicClerk and 
on-going Technical Support 

Agenda Date: September 5, 2019       AB19-043 

 Mayor Carol Benson  

City Administrator   

City Attorney David Linehan  

City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez X 

Com Dev – Barb Kincaid  

Finance – May Miller  

MDRT/Ec Dev – Andy Williamson  

Cost Impact (see also Fiscal Note):   Police – Chief Kiblinger  

Fund Source:  Public Works – Seth Boettcher  

Timeline:  Court – Stephanie Metcalf  

 IS – Rob Reed X 

Agenda Placement:  Mayor   Two Councilmembers  Committee Chair  City Administrator 

Attachments: Resolution; Master Service Agreement and Exhibits 

SUMMARY STATEMENT: 

City Council and staff have identified the need to replace the existing webpage and add agenda 
management software.  Staff solicited companies who provide these services and three 
proposals were received and all systems were demonstrated.   
 
Following the demonstrations is was determined that CivicPlus products best met the needs of 
the City.  The CivicPlus products integrated smoothly between each module and the costs were 
competitive to the others demoed. 
 
Project expenses for 2019 are anticipated at $8,000 website and $3,825 CivicClerk for a total of 
$11,825.  Recurring costs starting in 2020 will be $1,750 website and $2,500 CivicClerk for a 
total of $4,250. 
 
FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department):  There is money in the capital budget for this. 
 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: A motion to adopt Resolution No. 19-1314 authorizing the 
Mayor to execute a Master Services Agreement with CivicPlus for website 
design and installation, CivicClerk installation and ongoing support for website 
and CivicClerk software. 
 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

   

         

 



CivicPlus
 
302 South 4th St. Suite 500
Manhattan, KS 66502
US
 

 

 
Master Services Agreement: 
City of Black Diamond
 
THIS Master Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is agreed to by and between CivicPlus, LLC., d/b/a CivicPlus (“CivicPlus”) and City
of Black Diamond;(“Client”) (referred to individually as “Party” and jointly as “Parties”) and shall be effective as of the later date of
signing indicated at the end of this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
 

RECITALS
 

I. WHEREAS, CivicPlus is engaged in the business of developing, marketing and selling custom community engagement and
government management platforms and services that include but are not limited to web sites, web interfaces and portals and
proprietary software systems and associated modules; in addition to project development, design, implementation, support and hosting
services for same;
 
II. WHEREAS, Client wishes to engage in a relationship with CivicPlus for such services and/or license for the development and use
of proprietary software developed and owned by CivicPlus;
 
III. WHEREAS, Client and CivicPlus have agreed to certain terms as set forth in this Agreement by this written instrument duly
executed by the Parties;
 
NOW, THEREFORE, Client and CivicPlus agree as follows:
 
Term & Termination
 
1. This Agreement shall commence on the date set forth below and shall remain in full force and effect during the term of any
associated or attached Statement of Work (“SOW”) between CivicPlus and Client. This Agreement and any associated or attached
SOW will continue under the conditions set forth herein until terminated by either Party as specifically authorized herein.
 
2. Either Party may terminate this Agreement or any associated SOW at the end of the SOW term by providing the other Party with 60
days’ written notice prior to the SOW renewal date.
 
3. Upon termination of this Agreement or any associated or attached SOW, the licenses granted for such relevant SOW by Section 15,
below, will terminate; Client shall cease all use of the CivicPlus Property (as defined herein) associated with the terminated SOW.
 
4. Notwithstanding the above, in the event this Agreement or any SOW is terminated, for any reason, prior to payment in full being
made by Client for work completed by CivicPlus, any outstanding invoices or future planned billing for the development of Client’s
chosen government management platform and/or services, as defined in the SOW (“Project Development”), shall immediately become
due in full.
 
 
Statements of Work

Page 1 of 5



 
5. CivicPlus agrees to perform services and/or produce deliverables in accordance with the SOW in consideration of the fees owed by
Client in described in the same SOW. Multiple and successive SOW may be entered into and shall be attached hereto. Such SOWs are
incorporated into this Agreement by reference and subject to the terms & conditions contained herein pursuant to Section 27.
 
Invoicing & Payment Terms
 
6. Invoices shall be sent electronically to the individual/entity designated in the SOW’s contact sheet, to be filled out and submitted
by Client. Client shall provide accurate, current and complete information of Client’s legal business name, address, email address, and
phone number, and maintain and promptly update this information if it should change. Upon request CivicPlus will mail invoices, and
the Client will be charged a $5.00 convenience fee.
 
7. Payment is due 30 days from date of invoice. Unless otherwise limited by law, a finance charge of 1.5 percent (%) per month or
$5.00, whichever is greater, will be added to past due accounts. Payments received will be applied first to finance charges, then to the
oldest outstanding invoice(s).
 
8. If the Client's account exceeds 60 days past due, support will be discontinued until the Client's account is made current. If the
Client's account exceeds 90 days past due, Annual Services will be discontinued, and the Client website, modules, interfaces or portals
will no longer be active until the Client's account is made current. Client will be given 30 days’ notice prior to discontinuation of
services for non-payment.
 
9. If the Client requests a change in the timeline set forth and agreed upon at the beginning of the services, and such change causes
CivicPlus to incur additional expenses (i.e. airline change fees, consultant fees), Client agrees to reimburse CivicPlus for those fees.
Not to exceed $1,000 per CivicPlus resource per trip. CivicPlus shall notify Client prior to incurring such expenses and shall only
incur those expenses which are approved by Client.
 
Ownership & Content Responsibility
 
10. Upon full and complete payment of submitted invoices for any SOW Project Development Fees, Client will own the website
graphic designs, webpage or software content, module content, importable/exportable data, and archived information as created by
CivicPlus on behalf of Client pursuant to this Agreement (“Customer Content”).
 
11. Upon completion of any SOW Project Development, Client will assume full responsibility for website, software or module content
maintenance and administration. Client, not CivicPlus, shall have sole responsibility for the accuracy, quality, integrity, legality,
reliability, appropriateness, and intellectual property ownership or right to use of all Customer Content.
 
12. Client agrees that CivicPlus shall not migrate, convert, or port content or information that could reasonably be construed to be
time-sensitive, such as calendar or blog content, in any Project Development.
 
13. Client will make a reasonable attempt to work with CivicPlus, if requested, to create a news item to be released in conjunction
with their project Go-Live date. Client will provide CivicPlus with contact information for local and regional media outlets. CivicPlus
may use the press release in any marketing materials as desired throughout the term of this Agreement.
 
Intellectual Property & Ownership
 
14. Intellectual Property of any software or other original works created by CivicPlus prior to the execution of this Agreement
(“CivicPlus Property”) will remain the property of CivicPlus. Client shall not (i) license, sublicense, sell, resell, reproduce, transfer,
assign, distribute or otherwise commercially exploit or make available to any third party any CivicPlus Property in any way; (ii)
modify or make derivative works based upon any CivicPlus Property; (iii) create Internet “links” to the CivicPlus Property software
or “frame” or “mirror” any CivicPlus Property administrative access on any other server or wireless or Internet-based device; or (iv)
reverse engineer or access any CivicPlus Property in order to (a) build a competitive product or service, (b) build a product using
similar ideas, features, functions or graphics of any CivicPlus Property, or (c) copy any ideas, features, functions or graphics of

Page 2 of 5



any CivicPlus Property. The CivicPlus name, the CivicPlus logo, and the product and module names associated with any CivicPlus
Property are trademarks of CivicPlus, and no right or license is granted to use them.
 
15. Provided Client complies with the terms and conditions herein, the relevant SOW, and license restrictions set forth in Section 14,
CivicPlus hereby grants Client a limited, nontransferable, nonexclusive, license to access and use the CivicPlus Property associated
with any valid and effective SOW associated with this Agreement, for the term of the respective SOW.
 
Indemnification
 
16. To the extent permitted by the law of Client’s state, Client and CivicPlus shall defend, indemnify and hold the other Party, its
partners, employees, and agents harmless from and against any and all lawsuits, claims, demands, penalties, losses, fines, liabilities,
damages, and expenses including attorney’s fees of any kind, without limitation, arising out of the negligent actions and omissions,
or intentionally malicious actions or omissions of the indemnifying Party or its partners, employees, and agents, directly associated
with this Agreement and the operations and installation of software contemplated by this Agreement. This section shall not apply to
the extent that any lawsuits, claims, demands, penalties, losses, fines, liabilities, damages, and expenses is caused by the negligence or
willful misconduct on the part of the other Party.
 
Client Responsibilities
 
17. CivicPlus will not be liable for any act, omission of act, negligence or defect in the quality of service of any underlying carrier,
licensor or other third-party service provider whose facilities or services are used in furnishing any portion of the service received by
the Client.
 
18. CivicPlus will not be liable for any failure of performance that is caused by or the result of any act or omission by Client or any
entity employed/contracted on the Client’s behalf.
 
19. Client agrees that it is solely responsible for any solicitation, collection, storage, or other use of end-users’ personal data on any
website or online service provided by CivicPlus. Client further agrees that CivicPlus has no responsibility for the use or storage of
end-users’ personal data in connection with the website or the consequences of the solicitation, collection, storage, or other use by
Client or by any third party of personal data.
 
20. To the extent it may apply to any service or deliverable of any SOW, user logins are for designated individuals chosen by Client
(“Users”) and cannot be shared or used by more than one User. Client will be responsible for the confidentiality and use of User’s
passwords and User names. Client will also be responsible for all electronic communications, including those containing business
information, account registration, account holder information, financial information, Client data, and all other data of any kind
contained within emails or otherwise entered electronically through any CivicPlus Property or under Client’s account. CivicPlus will
act as though Client will have sent any electronic communications it receives under Client’s passwords, user name, and/or account
number. Client shall use commercially reasonable efforts to prevent unauthorized access to or use of any CivicPlus Property and shall
promptly notify CivicPlus of any unauthorized access or use of any CivicPlus Property and any loss or theft or unauthorized use of
any User’s password or name and/or user personal information.
 
21. Client shall comply with all applicable local, state, and federal laws, treaties, regulations, and conventions in connection with its
use of any of the services or CivicPlus Property.
 
Limitation of Liability
 
22. CivicPlus’ liability arising out of or related to this Agreement, or any associated SOW, will not exceed the Annual Services Fee
paid by Client in the year prior to such claim of liability.
 
23. In no event will CivicPlus be liable to Client for any consequential, indirect, special, incidental, or punitive damages arising out of
or related to this Agreement.
 

Page 3 of 5



24. The liabilities limited by Section 22 and 23 apply: (a) to liability for negligence; (b) regardless of the form of action, whether in
contract, tort, strict product liability, or otherwise; (c) even if Client is advised in advance of the possibility of the damages in question
and even if such damages were foreseeable; and (d) even if Client’s remedies fail of their essential purposes. If applicable law limits
the application of the provisions of this Limitation of Liability section, CivicPlus’ liability will be limited to the maximum extent
permissible.
 
Force Majeure
 
25. No party shall have any liability to the other hereunder by reason of any delay or failure to perform any obligation or covenant
if the delay or failure to perform is occasioned by force majeure, meaning any act of God, storm, fire, casualty, unanticipated work
stoppage, strike, lockout, labor dispute, civic disturbance, riot, war, national emergency, act of public enemy, or other cause of similar
or dissimilar nature beyond its control.
 
Taxes
 
26. It is CivicPlus’ policy to pass through sales tax in those jurisdictions where such tax is required. If the Client is tax-exempt, the
Client must provide CivicPlus proof of their tax-exempt status, within fifteen (15) days of contract signing, and the fees owed by
Client under this Agreement will not be taxed. If the Client’s state taxation laws change, the Client will begin to be charged sales tax
in accordance with their jurisdiction’s tax requirements and CivicPlus has the right to collect payment from the Client for past due
taxes.
 
Other Documents
 
27. The following, if applicable, are to be attached to and made part of this Agreement:
 

a. Any Addendum and/or Amendments to this Agreement signed by both Parties;
 
b. Exhibit A - Statement(s) of Work;
 
b. Service Agreement Sales Forms;
 
c. Service Agreements previously executed between the Parties; and
 
d. Custom Development / Retainer Agreement
 

28. In the event of conflict with an attachment to this Agreement, this main body of this Agreement will govern. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, no SOW or other attachment incorporated into this Agreement after execution of this main body of this Agreement will be
construed to amend this main body unless it specifically states its intent to do so and cites the section or sections amended.  
 
29. This Agreement and all attachments hereto sets forth the entire agreement of the Parties and supersedes all prior or
contemporaneous writings, negotiations, and discussions with respect to its subject matter.
 
Interlocal Purchasing Consent
 
30. With the prior approval of CivicPlus, which may be withheld for any or no reason within CivicPlus’ sole discretion, this
Agreement and any attached SOWs may be extended to any public entity in Client’s home-state to purchase at the SOW prices and
specifications in accordance with the terms stated herein.
 
Miscellaneous Provisions
 
31. The invalidity, in whole or in part, of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of
this Agreement.

Page 4 of 5



 
32. No amendment, assignment or change to this Agreement or any included SOW shall be effective unless by a written instrument
executed by each of the Parties.
 
33. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts. Each counterpart will be an original, but all such counterparts will
constitute a single instrument.
 
34. Each person signing this Agreement represents and warrants that he or she is duly authorized and has legal capacity to execute
and deliver this Agreement. Each Party represents and warrants to the other that the execution and delivery of the Agreement and the
performance of such Party’s obligations hereunder have been duly authorized and that the Agreement is a valid and legal agreement
binding on such Party and enforceable in accordance with its terms.
 
 
Acceptance
 
We, the undersigned, agreeing to the conditions specified in this document, understand and consent to the terms & conditions of this
Agreement.
 

Client CivicPlus
 

By:
 

By:
 

Name:
 

Name:
 

Title:
 

Title:
 

Date:
 

Date:
  

 
Please sign and email to Jordan Cairns at cairns@civicplus.com or fax to

Sign and E-mail the
entire

contract with exhibits to:

mailto:contracts@civicplus.com
 

Signature pages sent without the entire contract attached will not be accepted. We will
e-mail a counter-signed copy of the contract back to you once we begin your project.

CivicPlus does not require a physical copy of the contract, however, if you would like a
physical copy of the contract, mail one (1) copy of the contract with original signature to:

CivicPlus Contract Manager
 

302 S. 4th Street, Suite 500
Manhattan, KS 66502

Upon receipt of signed original, we will counter-sign and return the copy for your files.

Page 5 of 5

mailto:contracts@civicplus.com


Addendum to the Agreements by and between CivicPlus, LLC and Black Diamond, WA 
 
  

1  
Addendum to Master Services Agreement  

 

Master Service Agreement and Statement of Work  

Addendum  
 

THIS Master Services Agreement and Statement of Work Addendum (“Addendum”) hereby sets forth the (i) additional terms and 
conditions applicable to the Master Services Agreement and/or Statement of Work (“Agreements”) and/or (ii) amendments to specific 
provisions of the terms and conditions which exist in the Agreements (collectively, the “Special Terms”), as described below. The Special 
Terms shall be deemed to amend, modify, supplement, replace and/or supersede (as applicable) any inconsistent provisions of the 
Agreements, to the extent of the inconsistency.   
 
ALL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE AGREEMENTS NOT EXPRESSLEY MODIFIED HEREIN SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE 
AND EFFECT. 
 
Capitalized terms used and not defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Agreements (to which this Addendum is 
attached and incorporated). 
 
1. AMENDMENTS  
 
The terms and conditions of the Agreement are hereby amended as follows: 
 

Document and Section Amended Language 

MSA #22 This Section intentionally omitted. 

MSA #23 This Section intentionally omitted. 

MSA #24 This Section intentionally omitted. 

 
 

Acceptance 

We, the undersigned, agreeing to the conditions specified in this document, understand and consent to the terms & conditions 

of this Addendum. 
 

Client CivicPlus 

 
By: 

 
By: 

 
Name: 

 
Name: 

 
Title: 

 
Title: 

 
Date: 

 
Date: 

 



 CivicCMS Website Agreement Contract Information

CivicPlus • 302 S. 4th Street, Suite 500 • Manhattan, KS 66502 • www.CivicPlus.com 
Toll Free 888-228-2233 • Accounting Ext. 291 • Support Ext. 307 • Fax 785-587-8951 

Client Contact Information 

Organization URL 

Street Address 

Address 2 

City State 
Postal 

Code 

Emergency Contact & Mobile Phone 

Emergency Contact & Mobile Phone 

Emergency Contact & Mobile Phone 

Billing Contact E-Mail

Phone Ext. Fax 

Billing Address 

Address 2 

City ST 
Postal 

Code 

Tax ID # 
Sales Tax 

Exempt # 

Billing Terms 
Account 

Rep 

Info Required on Invoice (PO or Job #) 

Contract Contact Email 

Phone Ext. Fax 

Project Contact Email 

Phone Ext. Fax 



                CivicCMS License and Service Agreement for Black Diamond WA  

 

License and Service Agreement 

Date: August 14, 2019 

Client:  City of Black Diamond 

Client Address:  24301 Roberts Drive, Black Diamond WA  98010 

Phone: (360) 851-4500 

This License and Service Agreement (“Agreement”) sets forth the agreed upon terms and 
conditions under which CivicPlus, LLC (“CivicPlus”) will provide the Services, as outlined and 
defined in the attached Exhibit A – Statement of Work (“SOW”).  

Term and Termination  

1. This agreement shall be for a one-year period, starting at signing, and shall 

automatically renew, year-to-year, unless terminated by either party. 

2. Either party may terminate the Services by providing the other party with at least 60 

days written notice prior to the renewal date. 

3. Client may terminate this Agreement at any time if CivicPlus is found in default of any 

obligation defined within this Agreement which has not been cured within thirty days 

after receipt of written notice of such default. 

4. Notwithstanding the above, in the event this Agreement and the Services are 

terminated, any outstanding invoices for Services performed shall become due in full 

and any outstanding fees for annual services shall be prorated from the beginning of 

the renewal term to the date of termination. 

Intellectual Property & Ownership 

5. This Agreement is not a sale of CivicCMS Content Management System (the “CMS”) 

and its associated applications and modules. CivicPlus provides a right of use to the 

Client during the period of this Agreement. Rights are non-transferable. 

6. The Client will own the graphic designs and web content that are incorporated into the 

CMS; ownership assumes all invoices for development have been paid by the Client. 
Upon completion and delivery of the website to Client, Client will assume full 

responsibility of the content maintenance and administration. Client, not CivicPlus, 

shall have sole responsibility for the accuracy, quality, integrity, legality, reliability, 

appropriateness, and intellectual property ownership or right to use of all Client 

Content. 

7. Regarding the CMS, Client may not: a) license, sublicense or in any way commercially 

exploit or make it available to any third party, b) make derivative works based upon it, 

c) reverse engineer or access it in order to build a similar product, copy features or 

functions, or share it with third parties, or d) copy any ideas, features, functions or 

graphics. 

8. The CivicPlus name, the CivicPlus and CivicCMS logo, and the products and modules 

associated with these services provided are trademarks of CivicPlus, and no right or 

license is granted to use them. 



                CivicCMS License and Service Agreement for Black Diamond WA  

 

Billing & Payment Terms 

9. The project charges include the one-time development costs ($8,000) and the annual 

services ($1,750) as detailed on Exhibit A.  The client will be invoiced as follows: 

a.  50% ($4,875) will be invoiced within 30 days from the signed date of this agreement. 

b.  50% ($4,875) will be invoiced within 120 days from the signed date of this agreement. 

10. Annual services shall be subject to a 5% annual increase beginning in Year 3 of 

service. 

11. The Client shall only pay those expenses which are specifically defined in this 

Agreement or defined in writing and approved as an addendum to this Agreement. 

12. If the Client's account exceeds 90 days past due, the web service may be temporarily 

removed from service until the Client's account is made current. Client will be given 30 

days’ notice prior to any removal of the website for non-payment. 

13.The Client will be invoiced electronically through email. Upon request CivicPlus will 

mail invoices and the Client will be charged a $5.00 convenience fee. 

Taxes 

14. It is CivicPlus’ policy to pass through sales tax in those jurisdictions where such tax 

is required. If the Client is tax-exempt, the Client must provide CivicPlus proof of their 

tax-exempt status, within fifteen (15) days of contract signing, and this Agreement will 

not be taxed. If the Client’s state taxation laws change, the Client will begin to be 

charged sales tax in accordance with their jurisdiction’s tax requirements and 

CivicPlus has the right to collect payment from the Client for past due taxes 

Marketing 

15. Client allows CivicPlus to display a “Government Websites by CivicPlus” insignia, and 

web link at the bottom of their web pages.  

16. Client agrees to allow CivicPlus to include a reference(s) to the Client's website on 

the CivicPlus corporate website. This may include a mention of the Client, a picture 

of the Client's home page, and/or a case study of the Client's project. 

Liability 

17. CivicPlus will not be liable for any act, omission of act, negligence or defect in the 

quality of service of any underlying carrier or other service provider whose facilities 

or services are used in furnishing any portion of the service received by the Client. 

18. CivicPlus will not be liable for any failure of performance that is caused by or the result 

of any act or omission by Client or any entity employed/contracted on the Client’s 

behalf 

19. Client agrees that it is solely responsible for any solicitation, collection, storage, or 

other use of end-users’ Personal Data on any website or online service provided by 

CivicPlus. Client further agrees that CivicPlus has no responsibility for the use or 

storage of end-users’ Personal Data in connection with the website or the 



                CivicCMS License and Service Agreement for Black Diamond WA  

 

consequences of the solicitation, collection, storage, or other use by Client or by any 

third party of Personal Data. 

20. To the extent it may apply to any service or deliverable of any SOW, user logins are 

for designated individuals chosen by Client (“Users”) and cannot be shared or used 

by more than one User. Client will be responsible for the confidentiality and use of 

User’s passwords and user names. Client will also be responsible for all Electronic 

Communications, including those containing business information, account 

registration, account holder information, financial information, Client Data, and all 

other data of any kind contained within emails or otherwise entered electronically 

through any CivicPlus Property or under Client’s account. CivicPlus will act as though 

Client will have sent any Electronic Communications it receives under Client’s 

passwords, user name, and/or account number. Client shall use commercially 

reasonable efforts to prevent unauthorized access to or use of any CivicPlus Property 

and shall promptly notify CivicPlus of any unauthorized access or use ofany CivicPlus 

Property and any loss or theft or unauthorized use of any User’s password or name 

and/or user personal information. 

21. Client shall comply with all applicable local, state, and federal laws, treaties, 

regulations, and conventions in connection with its use of any CivicPlus Property. 

Indemnification 

22. To the extent allowed by law, CivicPlus agrees to indemnify and hold Client harmless 

from any and all claims for bodily injury, death, personal injury and property damage 

and for any other expenses (including attorney's fees) which arise out of the negligent 

actions or omissions of CivicPlus during the performance of this Agreements. 

Force Majeure 

23. Neither party will be liable to the other for any failure or delay in rendering 

performance arising out of causes beyond its control and without its fault or 

negligence. Such causes may include, but not be limited to, acts of God or the public 

enemy, freight embargoes, power outages, and unusually severe weather; but the 

failure or delay must be beyond its control and without its fault or negligence and shall 

only be for the period causing the delay. 

Miscellaneous 

24. At all times and for all purposes hereunder, CivicPlus is an independent contractor 

and not an employee of the Client. 

25. Any and all modifications of the services and/or terms of this agreement, shall be 

accomplished by an amendment, which must be approved in writing by both parties. 

26. The invalidity, in whole or in part, of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or 

affect the validity of any other provision of this Agreement. 

27. Each person signing this Agreement represents and warrants that he or she is duly 

authorized and has legal capacity to execute and deliver this Agreement. Each party 

represents and warrants to the other that the execution and delivery of the Agreement 

and the performance of such party’s obligations hereunder have been duly authorized 



                CivicCMS License and Service Agreement for Black Diamond WA  

 

and that the Agreement is a valid and legal agreement binding on such party and 

enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

 

 

Acceptance 

We, the undersigned, agreeing to the conditions specified in this document, understand and 

consent to the terms & conditions of this Agreement. 

 

Client CivicPlus 

 
By: 

 
By: 

 
Name: 

 
Name:    Bill Letsky 

 
Title: 

 
Title:     Sales Director 

 
Date: 

 
Date: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



                CivicCMS License and Service Agreement for Black Diamond WA  

 

 

Standard Website Services    Exhibit A 

       City of Black Diamond 

Initial Services 

 Phase 1: Website Design 

• Create Custom Site Homepage Design & Layout 

• Create Subpage Design & Layout 

• Modify Design with Client Input until Approved 

 

Phase 2: Site Implementation 

• Identify Global Navigation, Cascading Navigation, Mega-Menus & 

Related Links 

• Implement Design within CMS  

• Develop Department Landing Pages 

 

Phase 3:  Content Development 

• Create All Department & Board Landing Pages 

o Contact Information 

o Staff Table 

o Welcome Text 

• Build out up to 500 Pages/Files of content identified 

      by client  

 

Phase 4: User Training 

• One Day of Online User training sessions: Group & Individual, as 

needed 

 

Phase 5: Website Deployment 

• Final Site Review and Link Checking 

• Install & Activate related modules 

• DNS Activities 

 

Total Project Cost:              $8,000 

 

 

 

 

 



                CivicCMS License and Service Agreement for Black Diamond WA  

 

 

  
 Annual Services   Exhibit A 

Hosting 

• Secure Hosting in domestic data center 

• Shared Web/SQL Server 

• Redundant ISP 

• 24/7 Monitored facility 

• Redundant Power supplies with back-up generator 

• Daily backups off-site 

• 99.9% Uptime 

• Intrusion Detection & Prevention 

 

Support 

• 24/7 Emergency Support 

• Up to Two (2) Designated Support Users  

• Unlimited Number of Content Editors 

• Unlimited User Support, 9am to 5pm, Monday – Friday 

• Personnel dedicated solely to User Support 

• Same day response (24 Hour Window) 

• Online Training Documentation 

• Monthly User Tutorials 

 

CMA Application & Modules 

• Annual CMS Usage License 

• Periodic CMS Upgrades 

• Core Drupal Upgrades, as Applicable 

• Periodic Module Upgrades 

• Install Service Patches, as Applicable 

 

Total Annual Cost        $1,750 

Additional supported users may be added at an annual cost of $250 per user.  

Included in your website package: 

• Apache Solr Search Appliance 

• Google Analytics for Traffic Statistics 

• E-Subscriber Mail Lists 

• Online Web Forms 

• Online Monthly User Webinars 

• No Limit as to the Number of Pages You Can Add Over Time  



CivicPlus
302 South 4th St. Suite 500
Manhattan, KS 66502
US

 
 

Quote #: Q-04553-1
Date: 8/1/2019 10:37 AM
Expires On: 10/30/2019
Product: CivicClerk
 

Ship To
Rob Reed
Black Diamond WA - CivicClerk

Bill To
Black Diamond WA - CivicEngage

 
SALESPERSON Phone EMAIL DELIVERY METHOD PAYMENT METHOD

Jordan Cairns x cairns@civicplus.com Net 30

 
Exhibit A.1 - Statement of Work

QTY PRODUCT NAME DESCRIPTION TOTAL

1.00 CivicClerk Standard Package Standard Package - Max Number of Boards: 7 $0.00

1.00 CivicClerk- Standard Annual Fee CivicClerk- Standard $2,500.00

1.00 CivicClerk Consulting (per hour) CivicClerk Consulting (per hour) $100.00

1.00 CivicClerk Design CivicClerk Design $300.00

1.00 CivicClerk Configuration CivicClerk Configuration $300.00

1.00 Virtual Training (Half Day Block) Training (Virtual) - half day, up to 4 hours $625.00

TOTAL: $3,825.00

Total Days of Quote:365
One Time Costs $1,325.00
Recurring Costs $2,500.00

* Recurring Costs stated herein are based upon the number of days stated above.
Upon renewal of this SOW, the Recurring Costs will reflect a 365 day calendar year.

 
1. Performance and payment under this Statement of Work ("SOW") shall be subject to the terms & conditions

of the Agreement by and between Client and CivicPlus, to which this SOW is hereby attached as Exhibit A.1.
2. This SOW shall remain in effect for an initial term of one year (12 months) from signing. In the event that

neither party gives 60 days’ notice to terminate prior to the end of the initial or any subsequent renewal term,
this Agreement will automatically renew for an additional 1-year Renewal Term.

3. The Total Fees Year 1 (the sum of the One Time Costs and Recurring Costs) will be invoiced at signing of
this SOW.

V. PD 06.01.2015-0048
Page 1 of 5



4. Renewal Term Annual Services (Recurring Costs) shall be invoiced on the date of signature of relevant
calendar years. Annual services, including but not limited to hosting, support and maintenance services, shall
be subject to a 5% annual increase beginning in Year 3 of service.

5. CivicPlus will use commercially reasonable efforts to perform the Services in a manner consistent with
applicable industry standards including, maintaining Services availability 24 hours a day, 7 days a week
and responding to Client’s requests for support during the hours of 7:00 AM to 7:00PM CT, Monday through
Friday and any critical support requests 24 hours per day, 7 days a week.

6. Client shall have sole control and responsibility over the determination of which data and information shall be
included in the content that is to be transmitted to CivicPlus. Client shall not provide to CivicPlus or allow to
be provided to CivicPlus any content that (a) infringes or violates any 3rd party’s Intellectual Property rights,
rights of publicity or rights of privacy, (b) contains any defamatory material, or (c) violates any federal, state,
local, or foreign laws, regulations, or statutes.

7. The service(s) are provided on an “as is” basis, and Client’s use of the service(s) is at its own risk. CivicPlus
does not warrant that the service(s) will be uninterrupted or error-free or unaffected by force majeure events.

8. The Client will be invoiced electronically through email. Upon request CivicPlus will mail invoices and the
Client will be charged a $5.00 convenience fee.

V. PD 06.01.2015-0048
Page 2 of 5



Acceptance
 
We, the undersigned, agreeing to the conditions specified in this document, understand and authorize
the provision of services outlined in this Agreement.
 
 
Client

 
CivicPlus

By:
___________________________________

By:
___________________________________

Name:
___________________________________

Name:
___________________________________

Title:
___________________________________

Title:
___________________________________

Date:
___________________________________

Date:
___________________________________

V. PD 06.01.2015-0048
Page 3 of 5



Contact Information

*all documents must be returned: Master Service Agreement, Statement of Work, and Contact Information Sheet.

Organization                                                                                                   URL
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Street Address
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Address 2
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
City                                                                            State                              Postal Code
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
CivicPlus provides telephone support for all trained clients from 7am –7pm Central Time, Monday-Friday (excluding holidays).
Emergency Support is provided on a 24/7/365 basis for representatives named by the Client.  Client is responsible for
ensuring CivicPlus has current updates.
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Emergency Contact & Mobile Phone
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Emergency Contact & Mobile Phone
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Emergency Contact & Mobile Phone
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Billing Contact E-Mail
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Phone                                                                       Ext. Fax
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Billing Address
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Address 2
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
City                                                                          State Postal Code
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Tax ID # Sales Tax Exempt #
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Billing Terms Account Rep
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Info Required on Invoice (PO or Job #)
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Contract Contact Email
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Phone                                                                      Ext. Fax
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Project Contact Email
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Phone                                                                      Ext. Fax
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

V. PD 06.01.2015-0048
Page 4 of 5

Same as SMA



Addendum 1 to Exhibit A.1 - Project Development Division of Work
 
Phase 1 – Introduction and Initial Configuration
 
  CLIENT RESPONSIBILITY   CIVICPLUS RESPONSIBILITY

• Complete the implementation questionnaire
• Provide Word versions of your agendas and item reports

• Create a production site request and assign a PL request in
JIRA

• Reach out to Client to explain the Implementation plan
• Schedule and conduct a kick-off call with Client, if

requested
• Once supplied Word versions of the agendas and item

reports, configure the templates in the system
• Input questionnaire data

 
Phase 2 – Initial Review
 
  CLIENT RESPONSIBILITY   CIVICPLUS RESPONSIBILITY

• Be prepared to schedule a call for system review
• Provide feedback on any needed changes

• Schedule and conduct a first look call with Client.
• Provide any template changes needed to CivicPlus.

 
Phase 3 – Final Configuration and Review
 
  CLIENT RESPONSIBILITY   CIVICPLUS RESPONSIBILITY

• Provide a list of users
• Provide any additional feedback and changes

• Enter user list with appropriate security settings
• Make necessary changes to templates and configuration

 
Phase 4 – Training
 
  CLIENT RESPONSIBILITY   CIVICPLUS RESPONSIBILITY

• Schedule a presentation for administrator training
• Schedule a presentation for end user training

• Schedule and conduct administrator and end user trainings

 
Phase 5 (As Needed) – Additional Services
 
  CLIENT RESPONSIBILITY   CIVICPLUS RESPONSIBILITY

• Provide Word versions of your most recent minutes
• Provide a list of your Board/Council members
• Schedule a 30 minute call for minutes training
• Schedule a 30 minute call for BoardView training

• Once supplied Word versions of the minutes, configure the
templates in the system

• Schedule and conduct minutes training
• Schedule and conduct BoardView training

V. PD 06.01.2015-0048
Page 5 of 5



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Black Diamond 
Post Office Box 599 

Black Diamond, WA 98010 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT: 
 
Resolution authorizing contract with 
South Correctional Facility 

Agenda Date: September 5, 2019       AB19-044 

 Mayor Carol Benson  

City Administrator   

City Attorney David Linehan  

City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez  

Com Dev – Barb Kincaid  

Finance – May Miller  

MDRT/Ec Dev – Andy Williamson  

Cost Impact (see also Fiscal Note):   Police – Chief Kiblinger X 

Fund Source: General Fund Public Works – Seth Boettcher  

Timeline:  Court – Stephanie Metcalf  

   

Agenda Placement:  Mayor   Two Councilmembers  Committee Chair  City Administrator 

Attachments: Resolution; Contract 

 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 

 
Currently the City of Black Diamond contracts with SCORE for inmate housing and would like to continue 
utilizing the South Correctional Entity in Des Moines as an option when booking offenders. The City’s 
current inmate housing contract will terminate at the end of December 2019 and the attached interlocal 
is a proposed renewal contract with a requested return date of October 31, 2019, and an effective date 
of January 1, 2020. The agreement is for a three a year term with 90-day termination notice. 
 
2020 rates are $184.00/day plus additional surcharges if applicable (mental health, suicidal, infirmary 
etc.) 

 
 
FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department):  There is budget for this, however the cost varies 
depending on the bookings. 
 
 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: A motion to adopt Resolution No. 19-1315 authorizing 
contract with South Correctional Facility. 
 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

September 5,2019   

         

 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 19-1315 

 
 

  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A THREE-YEAR 
AGREEMENT FOR INMATE HOUSING WITH THE SOUTH 
CORRECTIONAL ENTITY (SCORE). 

 
 
WHEREAS, currently the City of Black Diamond contracts with SCORE for inmate 
housing and would like to continue utilizing the South Correctional Entity in Des Moines 
as an option when booking offenders and; 
 
WHEREAS, SCORE has provided notice that the City’s current inmate housing contract 
will terminate at the end of December 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, SCORE, which is a governmental agency formed by interlocal agreement 
among various member cities, has provided a proposed renewal contract for approval by 
contracting jurisdictions, including the City of Black Diamond, with a requested return date 
of October 31, 2019, and an effective date of January 1, 2020; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute an agreement for inmate housing 
with the South Correctional Entity (SCORE) for a term of three years, as shown in 
Attachment A hereto.  The schedule of fees and charges included in the inmate housing 
agreement at Exhibit A is approved. Per Section 4 of the agreement, the Mayor is 
authorized to acknowledge receipt of an updated schedule of fees and charges from 
SCORE and to accept same without necessity of formal amendment or action by the 
Council or the Board of SCORE. 
 
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, WASHINGTON, 
AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 5TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2019. 
 
       CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND: 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Carol Benson, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk 
 





































CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Black Diamond 
Post Office Box 599 

Black Diamond, WA 98010 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT: 
Resolution Authorizing an Interlocal 
Agreement (ILA) with the Houston-
Galveston Area Council for Procurement 
of a New Fire Apparatus. 

Agenda Date:   September 5, 2019     AB19-045 

 Mayor Carol Benson  

City Administrator   

City Attorney David Linehan X 

City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez  

Com Dev – Barb Kincaid  

Finance – May Miller  

MDRT/Ec Dev – Andy Williamson  

Cost Impact (see also Fiscal Note):   Police – Chief Kiblinger  

Fund Source:  Public Works – Seth Boettcher  

Timeline:  Court – Stephanie Metcalf  

   

Agenda Placement:  Mayor   Two Councilmembers  Committee Chair  City Administrator 

Attachments: Resolution, Sample ILA 

 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 

 
Currently the City if preparing to purchase a new fire engine.  Execution of this Interlocal 
Agreement will allow the City to piggyback on the purchasing authority of the Houston-
Galveston Area Council (HGAC) due to the wide range of qualified vendors and excellent prices 
through H-GAC.  This method was recommended by the Fire Chief. 
 
The City is eligible to join HGACBuy by entering into an Interlocal Agreement without financial 
cost or obligation therefore it was determined that joining HGACBuy would facilitate the 
efficient and cost-effective purchase of anew fire engine for the City. 
 
FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department):   
 
 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: A motion to adopt Resolution No. 19-1316 authorizing an 
Interlocal Agreement (ILA) with the Houston-Galveston Area Council for 
Procurement of a New Fire Apparatus. 
 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

September 5, 2019   

         

 



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 19-1316 

 
 

  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH THE HOUSTON-
GALVESTON AREA COUNCIL FOR PROCUREMENT OF A 
NEW FIRE APPARATUS. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Black Diamond is preparing to purchase a new fire engine; 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s contracted Fire Chief has recommended that the new fire 

engine be procured through “piggybacking” on the purchasing authority of the Houston-
Galveston Area Council (HGAC) because of the wide range of qualified vendors and 
excellent prices available through H-GAC; and 

 
WHEREAS, HGAC is political subdivision of the State of Texas that contracts with 

hundreds of local governments nationwide through its cooperative purchasing program, 
known as HGACBuy; and 

 
WHEREAS, HGACBuy has been providing government procurement services for 

over 30 years, establishing competitive prices for goods and services by virtue of 
competitive bidding and/or proposal processes compliant with state law; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City is eligible to join HGACBuy by entering into an Interlocal 

Agreement without financial cost or obligation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that joining HGACBuy would facilitate 

the efficient and cost-effective purchase of a new fire engine for the City; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 

WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute an Interlocal Agreement 

with the Houston-Galveston Area Council so that the City may become a member and 
procure authorized goods and services through the HGACBuy program, as shown in the 
sample agreement on Attachment A. 

 
  



Page 2 of 2 

 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 5TH DAY OF 
SEPTEMBER, 2019. 
 
       CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND: 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Carol Benson, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk 
 



 

 

   
 INTERLOCAL CONTRACT  ILC 
   FOR COOPERATIVE PURCHASING                  No.:______________                                                                  

                Permanent Number assigned by H-GAC 

 
 
THIS  INTERLOCAL  CONTRACT (“Contract”), made and entered into pursuant to the Texas Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 
791, Texas Government Code (the “Act”), by and between the Houston-Galveston Area Council, hereinafter referred to as “H-GAC,” 
having its principal place of business at 3555 Timmons Lane, Suite 120, Houston, Texas 77027, and *                                      ___         
________________________________________________________________________, a local government, a state agency, or a 
non-profit corporation created and operated to provide one or more governmental functions and services, hereinafter referred to as “End 
User,” having its principal place of business at * ________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                                                                                            
                                                                                        
 W I T N E S S E T H 
 
WHEREAS, H-GAC is a regional planning commission and political subdivision of the State of Texas operating under Chapter 391, 
Texas Local Government Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, H-GAC is authorized to contract with eligible entities to perform governmental functions and 
services, including the purchase of goods and services; and 
                                                                                                                                                
WHEREAS, in reliance on such authority, H-GAC has instituted a cooperative purchasing program under which it contracts with 
eligible entities under the Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, End User has represented that it is an eligible entity under the Act, that its governing body has authorized this Contract on 
*____________________ _______, and that it desires to contract with H-GAC on the terms set forth below;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, H-GAC and the End User do hereby agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE 1:  LEGAL AUTHORITY 
The End User represents and warrants to H-GAC that (1) it is eligible to contract with H-GAC under the Act because it is one of the 
following: a local government, as defined in the Act (a county, a municipality, a special district, or other political subdivision of the 
State of Texas or any other state), or a combination of two or more of those entities, a state agency (an agency of the State of Texas as 
defined in Section 771.002 of the Texas Government Code, or a similar agency of another state), or a non-profit corporation created 
and operated to provide one or more governmental functions and services, and (2) it possesses adequate legal authority to enter into this 
Contract.   
 
ARTICLE 2:  APPLICABLE LAWS 
H-GAC and the End User agree to conduct all activities under this Contract in accordance with all applicable rules, regulations, and 
ordinances and laws in effect or promulgated during the term of this Contract. 
 
ARTICLE 3:  WHOLE AGREEMENT 
This Contract and any attachments, as provided herein, constitute the complete contract between the parties hereto, and supersede any 
and all oral and written agreements between the parties relating to matters herein.  
 
ARTICLE 4:  PERFORMANCE PERIOD 
The period of this Contract shall be for the balance of the fiscal year of the End User, which began *_______________________ and 
ends * _______________________.  This Contract shall thereafter automatically be renewed annually for each succeeding fiscal year, 
provided that such renewal shall not have the effect of extending the period in which the End User may make any payment due an H-
GAC contractor beyond the fiscal year in which such obligation was incurred under this Contract. 
 
ARTICLE 5:  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
The End User appoints H-GAC its true and lawful purchasing agent for the purchase of certain products and services through the H-
GAC Cooperative Purchasing Program. End User will access the Program through HGACBuy.com and by submission of any duly 
executed purchase order, in the form prescribed by H-GAC to a contractor having a valid contract with H-GAC.  All purchases 
hereunder shall be in accordance with specifications and contract terms and pricing established by H-GAC.  Ownership (title) to 
products purchased through H-GAC shall transfer directly from the contractor to the End User.  

(over) 



 

 

 
ARTICLE 6:  PAYMENTS 
H-GAC will confirm each order and issue notice to contractor to proceed.  Upon delivery of goods or services purchased, and 
presentation of a properly documented invoice, the End User shall promptly, and in any case within thirty (30) days, pay H-GAC’s 
contractor the full amount of the invoice. All payments for goods or services will be made from current revenues available to the paying 
party.  In no event shall H-GAC have any financial liability to the End User for any goods or services End User procures from an H-
GAC contractor. 
  
ARTICLE 7:  CHANGES AND AMENDMENTS 
This Contract may be amended only by a written amendment executed by both parties, except that any alterations, additions, or 
deletions to the terms of this Contract which are required by changes in Federal and State law or regulations are automatically 
incorporated into this Contract without written amendment hereto and shall become effective on the date designated by such law or 
regulation. 
 
H-GAC reserves the right to make changes in the scope of products and services offered through the H-GAC Cooperative Purchasing 
Program to be performed hereunder. 
 
ARTICLE 8:  TERMINATION PROCEDURES 
H-GAC or the End User may cancel this Contract at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice by certified mail to the other party to 
this Contract.  The obligations of the End User, including its obligation to pay H-GAC’s contractor for all costs incurred under this 
Contract prior to such notice shall survive such cancellation, as well as any other obligation incurred under this Contract, until 
performed or discharged by the End User. 
 
ARTICLE 9:  SEVERABILITY 
All parties agree that should any provision of this Contract be determined to be invalid or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect any other term of this Contract, which shall continue in full force and effect. 
 
ARTICLE 10:  FORCE MAJEURE 
To the extent that either party to this Contract shall be wholly or partially prevented from the performance within the term specified of 
any obligation or duty placed on such party by reason of or through strikes, stoppage of labor, riot, fire, flood, acts of war, insurrection, 
accident, order of any court, act of God, or specific cause reasonably beyond the party's control and not attributable to its neglect or 
nonfeasance, in such event, the time for the performance of such obligation or duty shall be suspended until such disability to perform is 
removed; provided, however, force majeure shall not excuse an obligation solely to pay funds.  Determination of force majeure shall 
rest solely with H-GAC. 
 
ARTICLE 11:  VENUE 
Disputes between procuring party and Vendor are to be resolved in accord with the law and venue rules of the State of purchase. 
 
 
 
THIS INSTRUMENT HAS BEEN EXECUTED BY THE PARTIES HERETO AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 
*                                                                                              

Name of End User (local government, agency, or non-profit corporation) 
 
 *                                                                                             

Mailing Address                                                                            
 *                                                                                             

City             State          ZIP Code 
 
 *By:                                                                                           

        Signature of chief elected or appointed official 
 
 *                                                                                                

Typed Name & Title of Signatory                           

 Houston-Galveston Area Council 
3555 Timmons Lane, Suite 120, Houston, TX  77027 
 
By:________________________________________________________ 

                                                 Executive Director  

 

Date: ______________________________________________________ 
 
 

 
*______________________________________________      
Date 

*Denotes required fields                                                                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                                                  rev. 4/18                                               



 

 

END USER DATA 

 

Please sign and return the Interlocal Contract, along with this completed form, to H-GAC by emailing it to cpcontractfax@h-gac.com 

or by faxing it to 713-993-2424. The contract may also be mailed to: 

 H-GAC Cooperative Purchasing Program 

P.O. Box 22777, Houston, TX 77227-2777 

 

Name of End User Agency: _____________________________________________________ County Name: ____________________ 

                                                           (Municipality/County/District/etc.) 

Mailing Address: ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

                                        (Street Address/P.O. Box)                              (City)                             (State)                                 (ZIP Code) 

Main Telephone Number: ______________________________ FAX Number:  ____________________________________________ 

 

Physical Address: ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

                                  (Street Address, if different from mailing address)       (City)                        (State)                               (ZIP Code) 

Web Site Address: ____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Official Contact: ___________________________________________                     Title: __________________________________ 

                            (Point of Contact for HGACBuy Interlocal Contract)                    Ph No__________________________________ 

Mailing Address: ___________________________________________                    Fx No. : ________________________________ 

                                          (Street Address/P.O. Box)                                                   E-Mail Address: __________________________ 

_________________________________________________________ 

(City)                                     (State)                                     (ZIP Code)   

 

Authorized Official: __________________________________________                 Title: ___________________________________ 

                                   (Mayor/City Manager/Executive Director/etc.)                         Ph No.: _________________________________ 

Mailing Address: _____________________________________________                Fx No. __________________________________      

                                    (Street Address/P.O. Box)                                                   E-Mail Address: __________________________ 

____________________________________________________________ 

(City)                                      (State)                                     (ZIP Code)   

 

Official Contact: _______________________________________________           Title: ____________________________________ 

                                   (Purchasing Agent/Auditor etc. )                                              Ph No.: __________________________________ 

Mailing Address: ______________________________________________            Fx No. : __________________________________      

                                    (Street Address/P.O. Box)                                                 E-Mail Address: ___________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________ 

(City)                                       (State)                                           (ZIP Code)   

 

Official Contact: ________________________________________________       Title: ____________________________________ 

                                   (Public Works Director/Police Chief etc.)                              Ph No.: __________________________________ 

Mailing Address: _______________________________________________         Fx No. : _________________________________ 

                                          (Street Address/P.O. Box)                                                E-Mail Address: ___________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________ 

(City)                                          (State)                                     (ZIP Code)   

 

Official Contact: ________________________________________________       Title: ____________________________________ 

                                          (EMS Director/Fire Chief etc.    )                                    Ph No.: __________________________________ 

Mailing Address: ________________________________________________       Fx No. : _________________________________ 

                                          (Street Address/P.O. Box)                                               E-Mail Address: ___________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________ 

(City)                                          (State)                                     (ZIP Code)                          

 

* denotes required fields 



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Black Diamond 
Post Office Box 599 

Black Diamond, WA 98010 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT: 
 
Ordinance clarifying the language of 
Section 2.14.030 of the Black Diamond 
Municipal Code 

Agenda Date:    Sep. 5, 2019     AB19-046 

 Mayor Carol Benson X 

City Administrator   

City Attorney David Linehan  

City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez  

Com Dev – Barb Kincaid  

Finance – May Miller  

MDRT/Ec Dev – Andy Williamson  

Cost Impact (see also Fiscal Note):   Police – Chief Kiblinger  

Fund Source:  Public Works – Seth Boettcher  

Timeline:  Court – Stephanie Metcalf  

   

Agenda Placement:  Mayor   Two Councilmembers  Committee Chair  City Administrator 

Attachments: Proposed Ordinance 

 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 

 
At the last Council meeting there was consensus to refine the adopted code language of 
Section 2.14.030 to avoid ambiguities, and clarify the authorized duration of City Attorney 
contracts. 
 
 
 
FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department):   
 
 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: A motion to adopt Ordinance No. 19-1126 clarifying the 
language of Section 2.14.030 of the Black Diamond Municipal Code, providing 
for severability, and establishing an effective date. 
 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

September 5, 2019   

         

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 19-1126 

 
  AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
CLARIFYING THE LANGUAGE OF SECTION 2.14.030 OF 
THE BLACK DIAMOND MUNICIPAL CODE; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
 

WHEREAS, Washington state law applicable to noncharter code cities states, 
“Provision shall be made for obtaining legal counsel for the city, either by appointment of 
a city attorney on a full-time or part-time basis, or by any reasonable contractual 
arrangement for such professional services”; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Black Diamond Municipal Code was recently updated to 

incorporate a specific process for selection and retention of City Attorney services by 
contract; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council desires to refine the adopted code language of Section 

2.14.030, avoid ambiguities, and clarify the authorized duration of City Attorney contracts;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 

WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Amendment of BDMC 2.14.030.  Section 2.14.030 of the Black 

Diamond Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows: 
 
2.14.030   Contract approval and term. 
 
The city attorney shall be retained on a professional service contract on 
terms deemed appropriate by the mayor with any necessary approval for 
budget purposes by the council. The contract shall specify that the city 
attorney serves at the pleasure of the mayor and under the mayor’s primary 
direction. In no event may the city attorney contract purport to limit the city 
attorney to advising only certain persons or city officials. Rather, the city 
attorney shall advise all duly appointed and elected officials and staff of the 
city, subject to budgetary limitations as set by the council and administered 
by the mayor. The city attorney contract shall be for an initial term of up to 
five two years, and any extensions the contract shall not be extended 
beyond the initial term shall require a total of five years without council 
confirmation.   

 
Section 2.  Severability.  Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or 

phrase of this Ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared 



Page 2 of 2 
 

unconstitutional or otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this 
Ordinance be pre-empted by state or federal law or regulation, such decision or pre-
emption shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance or its 
application to other persons or circumstances. 
 

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be published in the official 
newspaper of the City and shall take effect and be in full force five (5) days after the date 
of publication. 
 

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND AT A 
REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON THE 5TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2019. 
 
       CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Carol Benson, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
    ______ 
David Linehan, City Attorney 
 
Filed with the City Clerk: 
Passed by the City Council: 
Ordinance No. 
Date of Publication: 
Effective Date: 
 
 
 


	Text1: City of Black Diamond
	Text2: 
	Text3: 24301 Roberts Drive
	Text4: Black Diamond
	Text5: WA
	Text6: 98010
	Text8: Rob Reed  (253) 258-1844
	Text7: Brenda L. Martinez (253) 302-9401
	Text9: Carina Thornquist  (360) 851-4502
	Text10: Darla Clifton
	Text11: accountspayable@blackdiamondwa.gov
	Text12: (360) 851-4500
	Text13: (360) 851-4501
	Text14: PO Box 599
	Text15: Black Diamond
	Text16: WA
	Text17: 98010
	Text18: 91-6016204
	Text19: 
	Text20: 
	Text21: Annual
	Text22: 
	Text23: Brenda L. Martinez
	Text24: bmartinez@blackdiamondwa.gov
	Text25: (360) 851-4509
	Text26: Rob Reed
	Text27: (360) 851-4508
	Text28: rreed@blackdiamondwa.gov


